
Due to the Declaration of a State of Emergency for the State of Maine and Town of Kittery, this 
meeting will be held remotely in accordance with LD 2167.  The meeting will be broadcast on 

Channel 22, Facebook, and live broadcast from the Town’s website. 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: (207) 475-1329 Fax: (207) 439-6806 
                                
 

         KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL 
May 27, 2020  

6:00PM 

 

The public may submit public comments for the DISCUSSION agenda item via email, US Mail, or by 
dropping written comments in the Drop Box outside the Town Hall entrance.  Emailed comments should 
be sent to TownComments@kitteryme.org. 

Comments received by noon on the day of the meeting will be read into the record by the 
Council Chair. 

 
      

1. Call to Order 

2. Introductory 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call   

5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption 

6. Town Manager’s Report 

7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes – From 2019 as follows: 

•  May 13, 2019 and May 29, 2019 

•  June 10, 2019 and June 24, 2019 

8. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees, or other town   
 consultants or requested offices. 

9. DISCUSSION -  

a. Public comments will be received via email, mail, or the Town Hall Drop Box up until 
noon the day of the meeting. 

b. Chairperson will read comments into the record. 
c. Chairperson’s response to public comment 

 

mailto:TownComments@kitteryme.org


Due to the Declaration of a State of Emergency for the State of Maine and Town of Kittery, this 
meeting will be held remotely in accordance with LD 2167.  The meeting will be broadcast on 

Channel 22, Facebook, and live broadcast from the Town’s website. 

 10. New Business  

 a.  Donations/gifts received for Council disposition 

  (050220-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept a donation in the amount  
  of $3,553.55 from the Robert W. Traip Trust to be deposited into the Library  
  Reserve account.  

 b.  (050220-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a new Victualer’s   
  License application from Kittery Ice Cream, LLC. 27 Hope Drive Amesbury, MA.  
  For Mrs. & Me. Ice cream located at 400 US Route 1, Kittery.  

 c. (050220-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a new Victualer’s   
  License application from the Corner Pub, 4 Wallingford Square, Kittery. 

 d. (050220-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a new Liquor License  
  application from the Corner Pub, 4 Wallingford Square, Kittery.    

 e.  (050220-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve an Amusement Device  
  License from Delta Amusement, 3 Tobey Street Hampton, NH for Navy   
  Yard Bar & Billiard located at 182 State Road, Kittery.  

 f. (050220-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the annual renewal of  
  Victualer’s License applications for 2020. 

 g. (050220-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a Viewing Booth License 
  Application from Capitol Video Corporation 44 Benson Road, Cranston, RI.  For  
  Amazing.Net located at 92 Route 236, Kittery. 

 h. (050220-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to issue a letter of permission to the  
  Kittery Port Authority in accordance with KPA rules 4.7.6 for construction of a  
  boat cradle located at 96 Pepperrell Road, Kittery Point. 

 i.  (050220-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to waive the enforcement of certain  
  provisions of Title 5.7 Sidewalk Sales and authorizes the Town Manager to  
  approve Request for Extension of License on Premise applications, as   
  presented, effective June 1 through July 31, 2020.  

 j. (050220-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to resume Public Hearings in June  
  and to prioritize items that have been on hold.  

11.  Council Issues or Comments 

 



Due to the Declaration of a State of Emergency for the State of Maine and Town of Kittery, this 
meeting will be held remotely in accordance with LD 2167.  The meeting will be broadcast on 

Channel 22, Facebook, and live broadcast from the Town’s website. 

12. Executive Session -  

13. ADJOURNMENT     
         
                 
 Posted:  May 21, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
                 

 
 
 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 

R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  C O U N C I L  
 

Meeting Date: May 27, 2020 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: COVID-19 Emergency Update 

 
 
This information is provided as an update to the Council on the Town’s emergency response efforts and 
the impacts of the emergency situation.  The information in this report is based on what is known today.  
As the situation changes, so too will the operations and projections provided. 
 
This report covers the following topics: 

 State Guidelines and Timelines 
 Status of Town Operations 
 Fiscal Year 2020 

 
STATE GUIDELINES AND TIMELINES 
The Governor issued a new executive order on May 11, effectively starting the 30-day clock for expired 
vehicle registrations.   All expired registrations (expired in March, April, or May; and temporary 
registrations) must be renewed by June 9. 
 
The Department of Economic and Community Development has begun direct conversations with  
coastal town and city managers regarding the safe reopening of tourism activities. This is something we 
have been asking the state for since April and appreciate the positive step forward this represents.  The 
first conversation focused on the unique challenges beach and day-trip destinations have in adhering to 
and enforcement of the state’s reopening guidelines.  The discussion was productive and there was a 
promise of ongoing conversations as the guidelines continue to be refined and revised. 
 
The state is preparing to reopen state coastal areas on June 1.  As the writing of this report, the state 
guidelines were not yet released.   
 
Our neighboring communities to the north are beginning to reopen their beach areas with some 
limitations on parking, bathrooms/bathhouses, and passive use (lounging).  Based on current 
information, it appears the majority of the beaches to our north will be open for normal use and normal 
capacity by mid-June.   
 
Our neighbors to the south are working collectively with their state leadership on a beaches plan. 
 
We are still awaiting a decision from the Governor regarding the July election.  A collective concern 
about the safety of election workers and voters has been raised repeatedly to the state from Wardens 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL   MEETING DATE: MAY 27, 2020   

2 

 

and Town Clerks.  In the absence of state action, we continue to encourage residents to register to vote 
using one of our contact free options, and to vote absentee for their convenience and safety.   
 
STATUS OF TOWN OPERATIONS 
We have requested additional PPE from the state for our EMS and public safety personnel.  Chief 
O’Brien reports that supplies are sufficient for the immediate future, but more will be needed as 
reopening advances in the area.   
 
Town Hall has been open for limited services as of May 11th.  Operations have gone smoothly with very 
limited lines and wait times.  We continue to encourage customers to utilize our online, phone, and 
email service options.  The only services unavailable contact free at this time are marriage intentions and 
private vehicle sales. 
 
The Resource Recovery Facility will resume normal hours and activities beginning June 2nd.  Customers 
will be expected to maintain social distancing while at the windows.  However, we will no longer have a 
staff person posted to enforce the distancing guidelines. 
 
With the recent changes in the state’s guidelines, the KCC will not be reopening the fitness suite as 
planned on June 1.  Room rentals and meetings will resume in June on a limited and restricted basis. 
 
We plan to reopen the Kittery Forest Preschool program (formerly EOTW) in early July.  The staff have 
been working diligently on an operations plan that aligns to state and federal guidelines.  
 
FISCAL YEAR 2020 
We are continuing to conduct weekly updates to our year end projections for FY20.  I have reported in 
previous communications that we are anticipating a significant revenue gap for FY20.  The current 
revenue gap is approximately $520,000.  The most recent Executive Order on vehicle registrations 
combined with the reopening of some functions should have a positive impact on the gap. 
 
The spending freeze combined with a very mild winter relative to snow is assisting on the expenditure 
side.  I am still projecting underspending the budget by approximately 2%.   
 
CONCLUSION 
There appears to be some light at the end of the tunnel in terms of resuming some semblance of normal 
operations for the Town.  The concerns still remain that too fast of a reopening will result in second 
wave and a second shutdown.  We continue to proceed relatively cautiously. 
 
 
Take care and stay safe! 



1 | P a g e  
 

Kittery Town Council UNAPPROVED Minutes 

May 13, 2019  

Regular Meeting 

Town Hall – Council Chambers 

 

1.   Call to Order 1 
2.   Introductory 2 
3.   Pledge of Allegiance 3 
 

4.   Roll Call    4 
Councilors present: Charles Denault, Jeffrey Pelletier, Kenneth Lemont, Vice Chair Matt Brock, & 5 
Chair Judith Spiller. Councilors absent: Cyrus Clark Jeffrey Thomson.  6 
      

5.   Amendment and Adoption  7 
      Chair Spiller cast one vote in favor of adoption. 8 
 

6.  Town Manager's Report 9 
 

Town Manager gave a report on:  Captain William Paisley, Joint Land Use Study, Route 236 Corridor 10 
Study, Kittery’s 375th and Maine’s Bicentennial, Snow Plow Rodeo Recognition, Town Service Center 11 
Software Update, Council Minutes, Memorial Day Parade and Ceremony. Upcoming Dates:  Town 12 
Clerk Office Closed for Software Upgrade – May 15, 8AM-9AM,  Kittery J-1 Student Community 13 
Support Meeting – May 21, 9AM, Kittery Community Center, Memorial Day Parade – May 25, 9AM, 14 
Town Hall Closed – Memorial Day – May 27, Spruce Creek Buffer Planting Volunteer Day – May 30, 15 
8AM, Rustlewood Farm,  Property Taxes Due – May 31,  Joint Land Use Study Open House – June 16 
5, 4:30PM-7PM, Kittery Community Center. 17 

 

7.   Acceptance of Previous Minutes - None 18 
 

8.   Interview for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board - None 19 
 

9.   All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town  20 
      consultants or requested officials. 21 
 

(050219-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to receive a presentation from the Town Manager on the 22 
FY20 Municipal Budget.   23 

 

     Town Manager presents FY 20 Municipal Budget. 24 
 

Councilor Denault and Town Manager discussed the Fire Departments employee wages for day shift    25 
employees. 26 

 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 27 
 

      a.  (050219-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and approve a  28 
     New Victualer's License for TACOCAT Mobile Food Truck, 230 US Route 1, Kittery. 29 
            



2 | P a g e  
 

   Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 30 
   Motion carried 5-0-0 31 
 

(050219-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and approve a New Victualer's   32 
License for Pam & Fam Forkin' Good Grub Mobil Food Truck, 230 US Route 1, Kittery. 33 

 

   Moved by Council Pelletier, seconded by Vice Chair Brock.  34 
   Motion carried 5-0-0 35 
 

(050219-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and approve a New Victualer’s 36 
License for Vagabond Coffee Mobile Food Truck, 230 US Route 1 Kittery. 37 

 

    Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 38 
     Motion carried 5-0-0 39 
 

(050219-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and approve a Special Activity 40 
Amusement Permit for Misto! 436 US Route 1, Kittery  41 

 

    Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 42 
    Motion carried 5-0-0 43 
 

11. DISCUSSION 44 
 

     Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person) 45 
 

Julia O’Connell, 9 Busick Drive Kittery - Ms. O’Connell spoke about Kittery citizens’ concerns about 46 
chloramines. Sponsoring a Q & A Monday May 20, 2019 at The Regatta in Eliot, Maine. Asking to 47 
distribute flyers at the Resource Recovery and stream the Q & A discussion on Channel 22. 48 

 

Response to public comment directed to a particular Councilor 49 
 

Chairperson's response to public comments 50 
 

     Chair Spiller deferred to the Town Manager on the distribution of flyers at the Resource Recovery. 51 
 

12.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 52 
 

13.  NEW BUSINESS 53 
 

      Donations/gifts received for Council disposition. 54 
 

(050219-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept donations in the amount of $3,050.00 from the     55 
following donors to be deposited in the Thresher Memorial Fund. 56 

 

Northeast Credit Union 57 
Andrews Construction Company 58 



3 | P a g e  
 

Maritime Mortgage Company 59 
Gerald and Elizabeth Mylroie 60 
Robert and Maureen Marshall 61 
Stratham Historical Society 62 
Jill Gallant 63 

 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 64 
Motion carried 5-0-0 65 

 

(050219-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement Warrants 66 
 

      Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 67 
      Motion carried 5-0-0 68 
 

(050219-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a Renewal Liquor License for The Pointe, 31    69 
Badger's Island West Kittery. 70 

 

     Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Chair Spiller. 71 
     Motion carried 5-0-0 72 
 

(050219-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the annual renewal list for Victualer's 73 
Licenses. 74 

 

     Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 75 
     Motion carried 5-0-0 76 
 

(050219-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the annual renewal list for Amusement    77 
Devices Licenses. 78 

 

     Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Chair Spiller. 79 
     Motion carried 5-0-0 80 
 

(050219-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from The Black Birch 2 81 
Government St. to extend their area of service into the parking lot on June 15, 2019 to coincide with 82 
the Kittery Block Party. 83 

 

    Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Vice Chair Brock. 84 
    Motion carried 5-0-0 85 
 

(050219-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from The Kittery Community   86 
Market to hang banners and place signs at various locations throughout the Town. 87 

 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Chair Spiller. 88 
    Motion carried 5-0-0 89 
 90 



4 | P a g e  
 

(050219-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from the Kittery Fire Fighters 91 
Association to place signs throughout the Town for their Annual Pancake Breakfast. 92 

 

     Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 93 
     Motion carried 5-0-0 94 
 

(050219-14) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a Pole Permit Request from Central Maine 95 
Power. To install poles along Adams Road. 96 

 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 97 
    Motion carried 5-0-0 98 
 

(050219-15) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a Municipal Release Deed request for Map 99 
& Lot 42/4, 43 Foye's Lane Kittery Point. 100 

 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 101 
    Motion carried 5-0-0 102 
 

    Vice Chair Brock asked the Town Manager to give an overview of a Municipal Release Deed. 103 
 

(050219-16) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a Public Hearing on June 10, 2019 to vote 104 
on the FY20 Municipal Budget and Sewer Budget. 105 

 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Vice Chair Brock all are in favor. 106 
    Motion carried 5-0-0 107 
 

l.  (050219-17) The Kittery Town Council votes to accept the Athletic Field Master Plan. 108 
 

   Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 109 
  

   Councilor Pelletier wanted to clarify that the motion was to accept Athletic Field Master Plan,  110 
    not to approve it. 111 
 

    Motion carried 5-0-0 112 
 

m. (050219-18) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor License  113 
     application from Misto! 436 Route 1 Kittery.     114 
 

     Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Denault. 115 
     Motion carried 5-0-0 116 
 

14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 117 
 

Councilor Denault discussed: Thresher Flag, Cross walk at Bridge Street and Old Post Road    not 118 
being properly marked Fort Foster leash ordinance and the deposal of dog waste, disposal of signs 119 
around the Town, Dennett Road property and social media. 120 



5 | P a g e  
 

 

      Chair Spiller, Councilor Lemont, and Vice Chair Brock thanked Town Manager for FY20 presentation. 121 
 

15. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS - None 122 
 

      Communications from the Chairperson 123 
 

Chair Spiller announced: May 29, 2019 Workshop at 5:00 p.m. with Port Authority Federal Navigation     124 
Project, June 10, 2019 Meeting at 5:00 p.m. with the Planning Board Accessory purpose ordinance. 125 

 

     Committee Reports - None 126 
 

16.EXECUTIVE SESSION - None 127 
 

17.ADJOURNMENT 128 
 

 Vice Chair Brock moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilor Pelletier.  129 
 Motion carried 5-0-0 130 
 

 

 Submitted by Kim Tackett 

 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. Whilst every 

effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the minutes are not intended as a 

verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a summary of the discussion and actions that took 

place. For complete details, please refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 

 

 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

Kittery Town Council UNAPPROVED Minutes 

May 29, 2019 

Regular Meeting 

Town Hall – Council Chambers 

 

Council and Kittery Port Authority Workshop- FNP 

 Council Chambers – 5:00p.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 1 

 2 

2. Introductory 3 

 4 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 5 

 

4. Roll Call 6 

 

Councilors present: Charles Denault, Cyrus Clark, Jeffrey Thomson, Kenneth Lemont, Vice 7 
Chair Matt Brock & Chair Judith Spiller. Councilors absent: Jeffrey Pelletier. 8 

 9 

5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption - None 10 

 

6. Town Manager’s Report 11 

 

Town Manager gave a report on: Thanked the VFW and all that participated in the 12 
Memorial Day celebration, Joint Land use Study, Government Street Wharf Project, Fort 13 
Foster Invasive Plant Management Plan, and Maine National Guard at Fort Foster. 14 
Upcoming Dates: Absentee Ballots Available, Spruce Creek Buffer Planting Volunteer Day 15 
May 30, 2019 8 a.m., Rustlewood Farm, Property Taxes Due – May 31, 2019, Joint Land 16 
use Study Open House – June 5, 2019 6 p.m.-7p.m., Community Center and Town 17 
Meeting Election & School Validation – June 11, 2019 8 a.m.-8 p.m., Kittery Community 18 
Center.  19 

  20 

7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes – None 21 

 22 

8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board – None 23 

 24 

9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town 25 
consultants or requested offices. 26 

 

(050319-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to recognize the recipients of the 2019 27 
Educational Recycling Scholarships, End 68 Hours of Hunger and Odyssey of the Minds.  28 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

Chair of the Educational Scholarship Committee Jeff Brake and Councilor Denault 29 
presented scholarships to: 30 

 

Tina Webster - $850.00 31 

Emma Kemp - $1250.00 32 

Amy Leung - $1250.00 33 

Rachel Jones - $850.00 34 

Rachel Potter - $1250.00 35 

Lily Kemp - $850.00 36 

Isabell Woollacott - $850.00 37 

Mohamed Hasan Shaikh - $850.00 38 

Odyssey of the Minds - $1000.00 39 

End 68 Hours of Hunger- $1250.00 40 

 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 41 

 

a. (050319-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing for a New 42 
Victualer’s License application from Coppa Magica Gelato (Mobile Food Truck) located at 43 
230 State Rd. State US Route 1 Bypass Kittery, Maine. 44 

  

Moved by Council Thomson, seconded by Councilor Clark. 45 

 

Motion carried 6-0-0 46 

              

 b. (050319-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing for a New 47 
Victualer’s License application for Wicked Mini Donuts (Mobile Food Truck) located at 48 
Kittery Premium Outlets, US Route Kittery, Maine.              49 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Denault. 50 

 

 Motion Carried 6-0-0 51 

 

 

c. (050319-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on a New 52 
Victualer’s License application for Pinks Lobster Rolls (Mobile Food Truck) located at 53 
Kittery Premium Outlets, US Route 1, Kittery Maine. 54 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Denault. 55 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 56 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

d. (050319-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and Ordain 57 
Amendments to Title 8 E- 911 Street naming.  58 

 

The Town Manager gave an overview of Title 8 E- 911 Street naming. 59 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Vice Chair Brock. 60 

 

Councilor Thomson and the Town Manager discussed pre-existing same name roads. The 61 
Town Manager stated pre-existing roads would not be affected. 62 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 63 

 

e. (050319-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on a New 64 
Victualer’s License application for BBQ Betty’s Smokehouse (Mobile Food Truck) located at 65 
230 US Route 1 Kittery.   66 

 

 Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Denault. 67 

 

 Motion Carried 6-0-0 68 

 

11. DISCUSSION 69 

      a. Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person) - None 70 

      b. Response to public comment directed to a particular Councilor - None 71 

      c. Chairperson’s response to public comments - None 72 

 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 73 

 

13. NEW BUSINESS 74 

 

 a. Donations/gifts received for Council disposition - None 75 

 

     b. (050319-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement warrants. 76 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Denault, all were in favor. 77 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 78 

 

c. (050319-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on June 10, 79 
2019 for Amendments to Title 2 – Library Positions. 80 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Clark, all were in favor. 81 



4 | P a g e  
 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 82 

 

d. (050319-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from Traip Academy 83 
class of 2019’s Project Graduation to hold a fundraiser at the Kittery Resource Recovery 84 
Facility on June 1st, from 9-5 rain date of June 8th. 85 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Denault. 86 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 87 

 

e. (050319-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from the Kittery 88 
Community Center to place banners at various businesses throughout the town to publicize 89 
the Kittery Block Party scheduled for June 15th. 90 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Denault. 91 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 92 

 

f. (050319-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor License 93 
application from Town Pizza 15 Wentworth St., Kittery. 94 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Denault. 95 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 96 

 

g. (050319-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Victualer’s License 97 
application from Frisbee’s Wharf located at 88 Pepperrell Rd., Kittery Point. 98 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Vice Chair Brock. 99 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 100 

 

h. (050319-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Victualer’s License 101 
application from El Grand Rodeo (Mobile Food Truck) located at 230 US Route 1, Kittery. 102 

 

Moved by Thomson, seconded by Chair Spiller. 103 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0  104 

 

i. (050319-14) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Viewing Booth 105 
License for Amazing.Net located at 92 Route 236 Kittery. 106 

 



5 | P a g e  
 

Moved for discussion by Chair Spiller, seconded by Councilor Thomson. 107 

 

Chair Spiller, Vice Chair Brock, Council Clark, Councilor Thomson, Councilor Denault, 108 
Councilor Lemont and the Town Manager discussed the reasons they should approve or 109 
disapprove the application for Amazing.net. 110 

 

Councilor Denault stated that he would vote no, because nothing could be done until there 111 
was a change in the ordinance. He thought the Town Attorney were going look into this. 112 

 

Councilor Thomson stated there was an article in Down East Magazine that said the Town 113 
of Wells officials had an emergency ordinance to block an Adult business from opening in 114 
the Town of Wells. 115 

 

Vice Chair Brock stated that he didn’t think there was anything legally that could be done, 116 
besides approve the renewal. Vice Chair Brock asked if a decision had to made at this 117 
meeting. 118 

 

The Town Manager stated a legal review of the ordinance had been done. She also stated 119 
Amazing.net has complied with the ordinance, passed all inspection and didn’t know what 120 
basis Council would have to deny the renewal. 121 

 

Councilor Lemont asked Chair Spiller if he could vote present since he didn’t want to vote 122 
for or vote against the renewal. Chair Spiller agreed. 123 

 

Chair Spiller, Vice Chair Brock, Council Clark, and Councilor Thomson voted to approve. 124 

 Councilor Denault and Councilor Lemont voted present. 125 

    

Motion Carried 3 voted to approve, 2 voted present.  126 

 

j. (050319-15) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Victualer’s License 127 
application for Chick-fil-A (Mobile Food Truck) located at Kittery Premium Outlets Route 1 128 
Kittery. 129 

 

Moved by Councilor Denault, seconded by Councilor Clark. 130 

 

      Chair Spiller, Vice Chair Brock, Councilor Lemont, Councilor Clark, voted to approve.  131 

Councilor Thomson voted no. 132 

Councilor Denault voted present. 133 

 134 

Motion Carried 4 voted to approve, 1 voted no, 1 voted present. 135 

 

k. (050319-16) The Kittery Town Council moves to authorize the release of funds in the 136 
amount of $250.00 from unassigned funds (unencumbered surplus) as approved by the 137 



6 | P a g e  
 

voters at the June 12, 2018 Town Meeting and to deposit said funds into account #101740-138 
68427 Expense Self-insurance Claims to cover the cost of the deductible for an insurance 139 
claim. 140 

 

 Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Clark. 141 

 

 Motion Carried 6-0-0 142 

 

l. (050319-17) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Victualer’s License 143 
application for the Bistro 1828 located at 88 Pepperrell Road Kittery Point. 144 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Clark. 145 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 146 

 

14.  COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 147 

 

Councilor Thomson discussed FY20 KCC Budget and revenue, Resource   Recovery 148 
signs, and asked the Town Manager to discuss the paving and sidewalk project, and wind 149 
turbine at the Resource Recovery Facility. 150 

 

Councilor Denault discussed recognizing Councilor Thomson, Chair Spiller and Vice Chair 151 
Brock for being on the Kittery Community Center Committee from the inception to current 152 
for a job well done. Rt.236 and Aroma Joe’s, bump coming into the Kittery Traffic Circle, 153 
yards full of litter, Thresher Flag, Fort Foster dog signs, individuals that have passed 154 
including William Seward Jr., Marian Dorr Niles, Allen Tibbitts, and Jim McNally. 155 

 

Chair Spiller discussed adding Councilor Pelletier to the list of people that were    156 
instrumental in the Kittery Community Center, she also thanked Public Works for the trail 157 
work at Fort Foster, and discussed the removal of the wind turbine at the Resource 158 
Recovery Facility. 159 

.  

15. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 160 

 

a. Communications from the Chairperson 161 

 

Chair Spiller reminded Councilors about the joint Workshop in Council Chambers on June 162 
10, 2019 at 5 p.m. with the Planning Board to look at accessory drilling units. 163 

 
b. Committee Reports - None 164 

 

16. EXECUTIVE SESSION - None 165 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

17. ADJOURNMENT 166 

 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Denault. 167 

 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 168 

 

 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 

 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 
Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the minutes 
are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a summary of the 
discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please refer to the video of the 
meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

Kittery Town Council DRAFT Minutes 
June 10, 2019 

Regular Meeting 
Town Hall – Council Chambers 

 
Council and Planning Board Workshop Title 16 – ADU’s 

Council Chambers – 5:00 p.m. 
 

 
1. Call to Order 1 
 
2. Introductory 2 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 3 
 
4.        Roll Call   4 
  

Councilor(s) present: Charles Denault, Jeffrey Pelletier, Jeffrey Thomson, 5 
Kenneth Lemont, Vice Chair Matt Brock & Chair Judith Spiller. Councilor(s) 6 
absent: Cyrus Clark. 7 

 
5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption – Chair Spiller cast 1 vote for agenda    8 

adoption. 9 
 
6. Town Manager’s Report 10 
 

Town Manager reported on:  Library Committee Updates, Wind Turbine, Rogers 11 
Road to Memorial Circle, Route 236 Corridor Study, Spinney Creek, Kittery’s 12 
375th and Maine’s Bicentennial, Variable Speed Signs, and Parking Feedback 13 
Wallingford Square. Upcoming Dates: Town Meeting Election & School Budget 14 
Validation – June 11, 8AM – 8PM, Kittery Community Center Kittery Block Party 15 
– June 15, Library Building Committee Public Input – June 26, 6PM, Council 16 
Chambers, Independence Day Celebration – June 29, 9AM at Memorial Park, 17 
Town Hall, Senior Property Tax Credit Applications – Due July 1 18 
 
Councilor Denault made statements on the wind turbine, Rogers Road, Memorial 19 
Circle, and speed limit signs on Stevenson Road. 20 
 
Councilor Thomson had a question about Wallingford Square parking. 21 

 
7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes – None 22 
 
8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board – None 23 
 
9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other 24 

town consultants or requested offices. 25 
 
a. (060119-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept a report from the        26 
Economic Development Committee (EDC) regarding their activities for 2019 to 27 
date.  28 

 
EDC Chair George Dow provided a report and answered questions. 29 



2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
                     

   
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 30 
 

a. (060119-1) The Kittery Town Council moves t hold a public hearing to receive      31 
comments on the Town Meeting Articles 2 through 8 for the June 11th Town 32 
Meeting Election.  33 

 
No action taken. 34 
  

b. (060119-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing in 35 
accordance with Sec. 6.06 (3) of the Kittery Town Charter and hereby ordains 36 
and adopts the 2019-2020 Municipal, Sewer and Adult Education budgets.  37 
 
Municipal Operations Budget 2020 38 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 39 
 
Motion Carried 6-0-0 40 
 
Adult Education Budget 2020 41 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 42 
 
Motion Carried 6-0-0  43 
 
Sewer Enterprise Budget 2020 44 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 45 
 
Motion Carried 6-0-0  46 
 

c. (060119-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on Title 2 47 
Library Positions. 48 
 
The Town Manager gave an overview on Title 2 Library Positions. 49 
 
George Dow thanked the Town Manager. 50 
 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 51 
 
Motion Carried 6-0-0  52 
 

11. DISCUSSION 53 
a.  Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person) - None 54 
b.  Response to public comment directed to a particular Councilor - None 55 
c.  Chairperson’s response to public comments – None 56 

 
12.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 57 
 
13. NEW BUSINESS 58 
  59 

a. Donations/gifts received for Council disposition.  60 



3 | P a g e  
 

 
     (060119-4) The Kittery move to receive a donation in the amount of $100.00 from 61 

          Donald and Nicole Kerr to be deposited in the Thresher Memorial Fund. 62 
   

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 63 
   

           Motion Carried 6-0-0  64 
 

b. (060119-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement 65 
warrants.  66 

 67 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 68 

   
Motion Carried 6-0-0  69 

 
c. (060119-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to determine their Summer 70 

Meetings schedule. Proposed dates are July 8th and August 12th. 71 
 

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 72 
 

Chair Spiller, Vice Chair Brock, and the Town Manager answered questions. 73 
 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 74 
  

d.  (060119-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing for the 75 
July meeting on Title 16 – ADU’s. 76 

 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Vice Chair Brock. 77 

 
Motion Carried 6-0-0  78 

 
e.  (060119-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from The 79 

Traip Interact Club to fund raise monies at the Kittery Resource & Recycling 80 
Center on Saturday August 24, 2019 from 9:30-2:00 pm.   81 

 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 82 

 
Motion Carried 6-0-0  83 

 
f.  (060119-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from Anju 84 

Noodle Bar to extend their area of service in the parking lot on June 15th 2019 to 85 
coincide with the Kittery Block Party.   86 

 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier.  87 

 
 Motion Carried 6-0-0  88 
 

g.  (060119-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor 89 
License application for Warren’s Lobster House located at 11 Water St. Kittery. 90 

 
            Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier.  91 

 



4 | P a g e  
 

Motion Carried 6-0-0    92 
  

h.  (060119-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve Municipal Release   93 
Deed for 23 Woodlawn Avenue, Kittery. 94 

 
The Town Manager gave a summary and stated the taxes were up to date. 95 

 
           Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier.  96 

 
Motion Carried 6-0-0  97 

   
i. (06012019-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public  hearing for 98 

the July meeting to update the Town Zoning Map. 99 
 

Councilor Thomson moved to reschedule the public hearing to August 12, 2020, 100 
seconded by Council Pelletier. 101 

 
 Motion Carried 6-0-0  102 

 
14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 103 
 

Councilor Denault discussed the adult viewing booths at Amazing.net, Town and 104 
State dog ordinances, and recognized the passing of U.S. Marine Mark 105 
Schremmer and Clifton Trefethen.  106 

 
Councilor Thomson discussed the speed limit issue on State Road, also 107 
mentioning that he and Councilor Lemont have been involved with Town 108 
Government for almost 50 years of service, and asked that 2019 graduates get 109 
involved with Town Government 110 
  
Chair Spiller commented on the repairs completed by Public Works at Fort 111 
Foster. 112 
 

15.   COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 113 
 

a. Communications from the Chairperson - None 114 
 

b. Committee Reports - None 115 
 
16.  EXECUTIVE SESSION - None 116 
 
17.   ADJOURNMENT  117 
  
 Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier, all were in favor. 118 
 
 
Submitted by Kim Tackett 119 
 
Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 120 
Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the 121 
minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a 122 
summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please 123 



5 | P a g e  
 

refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website at 124 
http://www.townhallstreams.com/locations/kittery-maine.. 125 



6 | P a g e  
 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

Kittery Town Council UNAPPROVED  
 Minutes June 24, 2019 

Regular Meeting 
Town Hall-Council Chambers 

 
 

 
1. Call to Order 1 
 
2. Introductory 2 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 3 
 
4.         Roll Call 4 
 

Councilors present: Charles Denault, Jeffrey Pelletier, Jeffery Thomson, Kenneth 5 
Lemont, Cyrus Clark Vice Chair Matt Brock, Chair Judith Spiller. 6 

 
5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption  7 
 
 Chair Spiller cast one vote for agenda adoption. 8 
  
6. Town Manager’s Report 9 

Town Manager Reported on: Snow Plow Rodeo Recognition, Kittery Block Party, and 10 
Government Street Wharf Project, Upcoming Dates: Government Street Wharf Ribbon 11 
Cutting – June 25, 1PM Route 236 Public Meeting – June 25, 4PM, Council Chambers  12 
Library Building Committee Public Presentation – June 26, 6PM, Council Chambers  13 
Independence Day Celebration – June 29, 9AM at Memorial Park, Town Hall Senior 14 
Property Tax Credit Applications – Due July 1 15 

 
Councilor Lemont asked the Town Manager a question about the Town Hall Senior 16 
Property Tax Credit.  17 

 
7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes – February 11th approved all were in favor. The 18 

February 25th meetings needed corrections, but were approved as amended, all were in 19 
favor.  20 

             
            Motion carried 7-0-0 21 
 
8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board - None  22 
 
9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town  23 

consultants or requested offices. - None 24 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS –  25 
      
11. DISCUSSION 26 
 

a.  Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person) 27 
  

Suzanne Johnson, 13 Cromwell Street Kittery – Ms. Johnson spoke about the Rice 28 



2 | P a g e  
 

Public Library, Kittery Town Hall employees, trash pickup, and snow removal for the 29 
poor. 30 

  
b.  Response to public comment directed to a particular Councilor - None 31 

 
  c.  Chairperson’s response to public comments 32 
 

Chair Spiller responded to Suzanne Johnson. 33 
 
12.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS –  34 
 

a.  (060219-2) Kittery Town Council moves to reschedule the Public Hearing for Title 16 35 
– ADU’s to the October 28th meeting 36 

 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 37 

 
Motion Carried 7-0-0 38 

 
13. NEW BUSINESS 39 
 
             a.  Donations/gifts received for Council disposition.  40 
 

(060219-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept donations in the amount                                              41 
of $98.18 from the following to be deposited into the Thresher Memorial Fund. 42 
 
Kittery Maine Improvement Foundation 43 
Jeffrey and Suzanne Berlin 44 

 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 45 

 
Motion Carried 7-0-0                             46 

 
b. (060219-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement warrants.  47 

 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 48 

 
Motion Carried 7-0-0                 49 

 
c. (060219-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Special Activity 50 
Amusement Permit for Maine Ocean Lobster, LLC., doing business as The Pointe 51 
located at 31 Badger’s Island West Kittery.   52 

 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 53 

 
Motion Carried 7-0-0                      54 

 
d. (060219-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a Public Hearing for Title 16 55 
– A-Frame Signs for the July 8th meeting.  56 

 
Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 57 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

            Motion Carried 7-0-0                           58 
 
 
14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 59 
 

Councilor Denault recognized individuals that have passed including: Arthur Fisk, Brian 60 
French, Thomas Lovering, Patricia Storer, Lenora Mills, Jean Woorick, and James 61 
Taylor. Councilor Denault discussed the dog ordinance, and included a report for the 62 
Council to be put on the July 8, 2019 agenda. He discussed having a non-binding 63 
referendum question to be put on the ballot at the November 5, 2019 election about 64 
leash laws and a dog park. He also discussed putting on the July 8, 2019 agenda a 65 
report to Council on updating property maintenance issue. 66 

 
Councilor Thomson discussed the property maintenance ordinance, people collecting 67 
signature at the polls for a non-binding referendum for the water issue with the Kittery 68 
Water District, and signs for I-95. Councilor Thomson also spoke of James Taylor.  69 

 
Vice Chair Brock spoke about the dog ordinance and requested that the item be put on 70 
an agenda in August. Vice Chair Brock also spoke about traffic on Route 1. 71 

  
Chair Spiller discussed public parks having mosquito and tick control. 72 

 
15.   COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 73 
 

a. Communications from the Chairperson - None 74 
b. Committee Reports - None 75 

 
16.  EXECUTIVE SESSION - None 76 
 
17.   ADJOURMENT 77 
     

Moved by Councilor Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier, all were in favor. 78 
        
            Motion carried 7-0-0 79 
 
 
 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 
 
 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 
Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the 
minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a 
summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please 
refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website.  







Safe Food and Water

Food Temperature Control

Food Identification

Utensils, Equipment and Vending

Physical Facilities

Person in Charge (Signature)

COS COSR R

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

Pasteurized eggs used where required

Water & ice from approved source

Variance obtained for specialized processing methods  

Proper cooling methods used; adequate equipment for
temperature control  

Plant food properly cooked for hot holding   

Approved thawing methods used

Thermometers provided and accurate

Food properly labeled; original container   

Insects, rodents, &  animals not present  

Contamination prevented during food preparation, storage & display   

Personal cleanliness

Wiping cloths: properly used & stored  

Washing fruits & vegetables

In-use utensils: properly stored  

Utensils, equipment, & linens: properly stored, dried, & handled   

Single-use & single-service articles: properly stored & used

Gloves used properly

Food & non-food contact surfaces cleanable,

Warewashing facilities: installed, maintained, & used; test strips   

Non-food contact surfaces clean

Hot & cold water available; adequate pressure  

Plumbing installed; proper backflow devices   

Toilet facilities: properly constructed, supplied, & cleaned  

Garbage & refuse properly disposed; facilities maintained   

Physical facilities installed, maintained, & clean    

Adequate ventilation & lighting; designated areas used    

properly designed, constructed, & used   

Date:

IN

IN

IN IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN IN

IN

IN

IN

Prevention of Food Contamination

Health Inspector (Signature)   
Follow-up:  

Sewage & waste water properly disposed

Proper Use of Utensils

5/14/2020

Date of Follow-up:¨ þYES NOSCOTT DAVIS

Circle designated compliance status (IN, OUT, N/O, N/A)  for each numbered item                                   Mark"X" in appropriate box for COS and/or R

IN=in compliance      OUT=not in compliance        N/O=not observed       N/A=not applicable                        COS=corrected on-site during inspection           R=repeat violation

FOODBORNE ILLNESS RISK FACTORS AND PUBLIC HEALTH INTERVENTIONS

State of Maine Health Inspection Report

Establishment Name

License Expiry Date/EST. ID#

Critical Violations

Non-Critical Violations

Date

Time In

Time Out
As Authorized by 22 MRSA ss 2496

Address City Zip Code Telephone

License PostedOwner Name Purpose of Inspection Risk Category

MRS & ME ICE CREAM

0
0

5/14/2020
11:00 AM
12:00 PMY

5/12/2021 400 US RTE 1 KITTERY 03904 978-609-7175

KITTERY ICE CREAM INC No

Page 1 of 5

 / 19317

Pre Operational

¨ ¨ ¨Failed Closed IHH

EATING PLACE - TAKEOUT

License Type

Certified Food Protection Manager

Employee Health

Good Hygienic Practices

Preventing Contamination by Hands

Supervision
PIC present, demonstrates knowledge, and 
performs duties

1

2
3

4
5

6

7

9

10

11

12

13

8

14

15

Approved Source

Protection from Contamination

Management awareness; policy present     
Proper use of reporting, restriction & exclusion

Proper eating, tasting, drinking, or tobacco use
No discharge from eyes, nose, and mouth

Hands clean & properly washed

No bare hand contact with RTE foods or approved
alternate method properly followed

Adequate handwashing facilities supplied & accessible

Food in good condition, safe, & unadulterated

Required records available: shellstock tags
parasite destruction

Food separated & protected

Food-contact surfaces: cleaned and sanitized

Proper disposition of returned, previously served, 
reconditioned, & unsafe food

Compliance Status Compliance Status

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Risk Factors are improper practices or procedures identified as the most

prevalent  contributing  factors  of  foodborne  illness  or  injury. Public  Health

Interventions  are  control  measures  to  prevent  foodborne  illness  or  injury.

Proper cooking time & temperatures  

Proper reheating procedures for hot holding

Proper cooling time & temperatures   

Proper cold holding temperatures

Proper date marking & disposition   

Time as a public health control: procedures & record

Consumer advisory provided for raw or 
undercooked foods

Pasteurized foods used; prohibited foods not 
offered

Food additives: approved & properly used

Toxic substances properly identified, stored & used

Compliance with variance, specialized process,  
& HACCP plan

COS R COS

Potentially Hazardous Food Time/Temperature

Consumer Advisory

Highly Susceptible Populations

Chemical

Conformance with Approved Procedures

IN

IN
IN

IN
IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

IN

R

Proper hot holding temperatures   

Food obtained from approved source

Food received at proper temperature

Mark "X" in box if numbered item is not in compliance            Mark "X" in appropriate box for COS and/or R          COS=corrected on-site during inspection       R=repeat violation

GOOD RETAIL PRACTICES
Good Retail Practices are preventative measures to control the addition of pathogens, chemicals, and physical objects into foods.   

HHE-600 Rev.01/07/10



State of Maine Health Inspection Report
Establishment Name

MRS & ME ICE CREAM

5/12/2021
Address
400 US RTE 1

City / State
KITTERY / ME

As Authorized by 22 MRSA s 2496

Zip Code
03904 978-609-7175

Telephone

Date

Page 2 of 5

s 5/14/2020

Temperature Observations
 / 19317

Notes

License Expiry Date/EST. ID#

TemperatureLocation

HHE-601(a)Rev.01/07/10

Person in Charge (Signature)

Health Inspector (Signature)   

Date: 5/14/2020

SCOTT DAVIS



Observations and Corrective Actions
Violations cited in this report must be corrected within the time frames below,  or as stated in sections

8-405.11 and 8-406.11 of the Food Code

State of Maine Health Inspection Report Page 3 of 5

5/14/2020Date

Zip Code
03904

City / State
KITTERY ME400 US RTE 1

Address
19317 / 5/12/2021

License Expiry Date/EST. ID#

MRS & ME ICE CREAM

Establishment Name

HHE-601(a)Rev.01/07/10 Page 3 of 5

Person in Charge (Signature)

Health Inspector (Signature)   

Date: 5/14/2020

SCOTT DAVIS



State of Maine Health Inspection Report Page 4 of 5

5/14/2020Date

Zip Code
03904

City / State
KITTERY ME400 US RTE 1

Address
19317 / 5/12/2021

License Expiry Date/EST. ID#

MRS & ME ICE CREAM

Establishment Name

Inspection Notes
OK To Issue Regular License.
OK to operate once final cleanup is complete and local municipality has given their approval to operate.

This inspection was conducted on-site. The report was entered in remote format off-site, reviewed with the PIC via (either
telephone or video conference) and finalized. The name of the PIC was printed in the signature block by the inspector with prior
permission obtained from the PIC. The PIC’s actual signature was not obtained. A copy of this report has been provided to the PIC
via email.

Certified Food Protection Manager  Derek Dore5-29-2024
Every eating establishment must employ on its staff a Certified Food Protection Manager (CFPM).  Some establishments are
exempt from this requirement.  A CFPM certificate must accompany the application for a new establishment and change of
ownership.  A CFPM must be hired within 60 days of the departure of the last CFPM leaving employment. Eating establishments
must post in a conspicuous area the certification of the CFPM(s), and the certificate must be made available to the Department
upon request.  For a list of CFPM courses and trainers go to http://www.maine.gov/healthinspection/training.htm.  Please provide a
copy of this certification(s) to Carol Gott, Health Inspection Program, 286 Water St. 3rd Floor, Augusta, ME 04333,
carol.gott@maine.gov or faxing to 207-287-3165.  Please include the name of your establishment and the establishment ID# with
your certification(s).

Employee Health Policy
The Health Inspection Program implemented an educational public health initiative on Employee Health on March 1, 2017.  The
policy handouts will be provided to you by your inspector and reviewed during inspection for compliance.  They are also available
on the Program’s website: http://www.maine.gov/healthinspection
2013 Maine Food Code Adoption
The Maine Food Code was adopted in October of 2013. Please refer to our website for a copy,
http://www.maine.gov/healthinspection.  Following are a few of the major changes: * No Bare Hand Contact with Ready-To-Eat
Food.  * Establishments must have clean-up procedures for employees to follow following vomiting and diarrheal events. * Date
marking of Ready-to-eat potentially hazardous foods.

Violation Correction Timeframe
Critical violations should be corrected on site, but in any event, within 10 days.  The licensee must contact the inspector when the
critical violation has been addressed at 207-592-7225.  Non-critical violations must be corrected within 30 days.  Failure to
satisfactorily correct these violations before the follow-up inspection may result in enforcement proceedings by the Department to
include fines and penalties.   License renewals can be denied if violations are not corrected within the noted timeframes. 
 
C= Critical violation and NC= Non-critical violation 
“Critical violation” means a provision of the Food Code that, if in non-compliance, is more likely than other violations to
contribute to food contamination, illness or environmental health hazard. 

Additional Inspection Fee
License fees provide for two inspections per year.  When additional inspections are required, the Department may charge an
additional $100 fee to cover the costs of each additional inspection or visit.

Document Retention/Posting
Pursuant to the Maine Food Code, the establishment’s current license must be displayed.  In addition, a sign or placard must be
posted in a conspicuous area notifying consumers that a copy of the most recent inspection report is available upon request. CFPM

HHE-601(a)Rev.01/07/10 Page 4 of 5

Person in Charge (Signature)

Health Inspector (Signature)   

Date: 5/14/2020

SCOTT DAVIS



State of Maine Health Inspection Report Page 5 of 5

5/14/2020Date

Zip Code
03904

City / State
KITTERY ME400 US RTE 1

Address
19317 / 5/12/2021

License Expiry Date/EST. ID#

MRS & ME ICE CREAM

Establishment Name

Inspection Notes
certificates must be posted in a conspicuous area and must be available to the Department upon request.

HHE-601(a)Rev.01/07/10 Page 5 of 5

Person in Charge (Signature)

Health Inspector (Signature)   

Date: 5/14/2020

SCOTT DAVIS



























                                                  Annual Victualer’s License Applicants for 2020 

• 518 Noodle  

• AJ's Wood Grilled Pizza 

• Amato's 

• Anju 

• Anneke Jans 

• Badger's Island Pizza 

• Bagel Caboose 

• Baker Bobby Pizzaiolo - Food  

• BBQ Betty Smokehouse 

• Beach Pea Baking Company 

• Bedrock Lobster Pound 

• Bistro 1828 

• Blue Mermaid 

• Bob's Clam Hut 

• Boston Pie Inc.  DBA Domino's 

• Burger King 6539 

• Carl's Meat Market 

• Chauncey Creek Lobster Pier 

• Chick-fil-A – Food Truck 

• Chun Ping Lau 

• Circle K #4707065 

• Coachman Inn 

• Coppa Magica Gelato – Food Truck  

• Dunkin Donuts 

• Enchanted Nights B&B 

• Festina Lente 

• Frisbee's Wharf 

• Golden Harvest 

• Hampton Inn & Suites 

• Henryville LLC DBAHenry VIII Cavery  

• Island Marina Svc / Badger's Island 
Marina 

• Kates Bakery & Café 

• Kenzies Restaurant and Pub 

• Kittery Dairy Queen 

• Kittery Food Mart 

• La Casita 

• Lexie's Burger Bus – Food Truck 

• Lil's Café 

• Loco Coco's Tacos 

• Lovebirds Donuts – Food Truck 
 

• Loyal Order of Moose 444 

• Maine Meat (MEat) 

• Maine Squeeze Juice Café 

• Misto! Café Bar-Bistro 

• Morrison's Lobsters LLC 

• Napoli PSC Series LLC DBA CNF ME 
LLC-McDonalds 

• Navy Yard Bar & Billiard 

• Ore Nell's BBQ 

• Pam & Fam Forkin' Good Grub – 
Food Truck 

• Paved Paradise – Food Truck Pod 

• Petrogas Group 7-Eleven 

• Pine Tree Country Store 

• Pressed for Time Mobile Café 

• Robert's Maine Grill & Market 

• Rose Springs Rolls – Food Truck  

• Rudders Public House 

• Starbucks Coffee (7907) 

• Starry Nights Bed & Breakfast 

• Street Eats – Food Truck 

• Subway 

• Sue's Seafood 

• Sunrise Grill 

• Tacocat 

• Tasty Thai Inc. 

• Thai & I Restaurant 

• The Black Birch 

• The Fire Fly Diner 

• The Lobster Pot 

• The Pointe 

• The View 

• The Water Street Inn LLC 

• Town Pizza Restaurant 

• Tributary Brewing Company 

• Tulsi Indian Restaurant 

• Vagabond Coffee 

• Warren's Lobster House 

• Weathervane Seafood 

• When Pigs Fly Pizzeria 

• Wicked Mini Donuts – Food Truck  

• Woodland Farms Brewery 
  
  
  
  
  
  





















































 
 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 
 

 

 
R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  CO U N C I L  

 
Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

UPDATE: May 27, 2020 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Sidewalk Sales during COVID-19 

Councilor Sponsor: Chairperson Judy Spiller 

 
 
OVERVIEW 
The intent is to allow the Town’s retail and dining operations to resume economic activity while meeting 
social distancing and safety guidelines required as a result of COVID-19.  The proposal provides broader 
permission for businesses to expand their commercial space to outdoor areas allowing them to open and/or 
serve patrons safely. 
 
The proposed waiver allows for administrative approval of sidewalk sales and extension of premises liquor 
licenses.  It also waives certain limitations including duration, parking, and street closures.  
 
PROPOSAL 
The Governor is encouraging communities to work with their local businesses to be creative about allowing 
outdoor sales that expand retail and dining space while social distancing is required.   
 
We are working with businesses, both individually and as groups to develop plans that are safe for customers, 
pedestrians, and vehicles.  Examples of planning to date include: 
 
Foreside 
• Allowing expansion of dining and retail into private parking lots, including possibility for tents 
• Demarcated dining areas on sidewalks  
• Redirecting pedestrian flow into the parking stalls and street with appropriate safety barriers 
• Closing the Government Street access to Gate 1 
• Allow on-street dining and retail uses including “to go” pick-up zones 
• Approaching other property owners for shared parking to support businesses 

 
Post Office Square 
• Allowing expansion of dining and retail into private parking lots including possibility for tents 
• Increasing allowable ratio of parking to be taken up by sidewalk sales 
 
Route 1 Mall Area 
• Allowing expansion of dining and retail into private parking lots including possibility for tents 
• Increasing allowable ratio of parking to be taken up by sidewalk sales 

 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL    UPDATED: MAY 27, 2020 

2 
 

Pepperrell Cove 
• Allowing expansion of dining and retail into private parking lots including possibility for tents 
• Increasing allowable ratio of parking to be taken up by sidewalk sales 
 
PROCESS 
Applicants will be able to apply through the Planning Office.  Applicants must provide: 
• contact information for the business and manager on site 
• a description of the area to be utilized 
• a site plan indicating the proposed outdoor setup 

o information about tents or temporary structures 
o traffic/flow management measures 

• owner’s affidavit of approval if the applicant is a tenant 
• extension of premises application (if applicable) 
 
There will be no fee for sidewalk sale applications or tent permits.   
 
Applications will be reviewed by a team of staff including Planning, Code Enforcement, Police, Fire, and 
DPW.  Approved plans will be signed off by the Director of Planning and Development. Extension of 
Premise applications will be signed off by the Town Manager. 

PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the waiver as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

- Sidewalk Sales Waiver 
- Title 5.7 Sidewalk Sales 



 
 
 
 

EMERGENCY WAIVER  
OUTDOOR RETAIL AND RESTAURANT SALES  

PANDEMIC COVID-19 
 

WHEREAS, COVID-19, also known as coronavirus is a highly infectious virus that poses an imminent 
disaster to the residents, workers, and visitors to Kittery; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Governor of Maine declared a state of civil emergency for Maine on March 15, 2020; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager declared a local disaster existed in Kittery on March 25, 2020 in 
accordance with the Title 8.3.6 of the Town Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Kittery, in whole, is deemed vulnerable to the virus; and 
 
WHEREAS, the need to prevent further spreading of the virus through person-to-person contact 
requires actions that include potential regulations and enforcement waivers pertaining to the movement 
of persons and vehicles, and commerce within and outside of the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Governor of Maine has encouraged communities to work with their commercial 
businesses on outdoor retail and dining to alleviate limitations on business operations resulting from 
required social distancing and limitations on congregating during the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Kittery Town Council wishes to support the businesses in town by making outdoor 
sales and dining possible through streamlined review and approval processes that respond to evolving 
safety guidelines for safe operations during the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Kittery Town Council hereby waives enforcement of the following 
provisions of Title 5.7 Sidewalk Sales and authorizes the Town Manager to approve Request for 
Extension of License on Premise applications effective June 1 through July 31, 2020, unless otherwise 
modified by a vote of the Town Council. 
 

• 5.7.5. and 5.7.7 Town Council Approval - Approvals may be granted administratively upon 
staff review and approval of an application and site plan. 

• 5.7.6.A Four-Day Limitation on Sidewalk Sale Duration – Sidewalk sale approvals may be 
valid through July 31, 2020 unless the Council modifies the waiver. 

• 5.7.6.B Signature of Five Landlords – requirement to obtain signatures from five landlords is 
waived. 

• 5.7.10 Review Standards Parking – Number of obstructed parking spaces may exceed 10%. 
• 5.7.13 Temporary Street Closing – Street closing and public parking obstructions may be 

approved by the Town Manager. 
 
Motion to approve made by Councilor ___________________ and seconded by Councilor  

_________________________, and passed by a vote of   ________ on the ________ day of  

___________, 2020. 



Chapter 5.7

SIDEWALK SALES

§ 5.7.1. Title.

This chapter is known as the "Sidewalk Sales Ordinance."

§ 5.7.2. Intent and purpose.1

§ 5.7.3. Definitions.2

Terms, phrases and words in this chapter have the meaning given herein or,
if not defined, are given their ordinary accepted meaning:
GARAGE SALE — See definition in § 5.4.1.
SIDEWALK SALE or SIDEWALK SALES EVENT — Temporary outdoor retail
or food sales for commercial purposes of merchandise normally and legally
sold on the premises where the outdoor sales are located. The displaying
of the merchandise need not be limited to sidewalk locations but must
preserve safe pedestrian, vehicular and emergency vehicle routes.

§ 5.7.4. Applicability.

The regulations of this chapter do not apply to garage sales, outdoor sales
that have been reviewed and approved by the Planning Board, temporary
fund-raising events for nonprofit causes, Town-sponsored events, or other
uses legally established under Title 16, Land Use and Development Code.
In addition, this chapter does not apply to sidewalk sales events that have

A. It is the purpose of this chapter to provide an opportunity for existing
merchants in the Town to hold up to five sidewalk sales per calendar
year, not to exceed four days in duration, in a manner that protects the
health, safety and welfare of the public. Cultural, musical, community
and educational events are encouraged to take place in conjunction
with the sidewalk sales event. It is not the intent of this chapter to
authorize transient vending.

B. In return for the privilege of conducting such sales, merchants and
landlords are expected to self-police themselves to conduct the
sidewalk sales according to their submitted and approved sidewalk
sales site plans.

C. This chapter is further intended to specifically prevent traffic
congestion, obstructions of emergency vehicle lanes, the unsafe
commingling of pedestrians and vehicles that can occur in unregulated,
uncoordinated and unplanned sidewalk sales events.

1. Editor's Note: Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1.1, Code Adoption).
2. Editor's Note: Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1.1, Code Adoption).

5.7:1



legally existed on a verifiable regular basis as of the date the ordinance
codified in this chapter becomes effective.

§ 5.7.5. Town Council approval required.

Except for exempted uses listed in § 5.7.4, no person, business, corporation,
partnership or other legal entity may conduct sidewalk sales within the
Town unless:

§ 5.7.6. Submission requirements for Town-wide sidewalk sales
event.

Submission of a completed Town-wide sidewalk sales event application,
indicating the following, is required:

§ 5.7.7. Town Council decision on Town-wide sidewalk sales event.

A. The sidewalk sales activities are conducted on days of the year
approved by the Town Council; and

B. Sidewalk sales activities on each property are conducted in
conformance with a Town-approved sidewalk sales site plan kept on file
that includes all information required by § 5.7.9 and satisfies the review
criteria in § 5.7.10 to ensure that health, safety and nuisance aspects of
the sidewalk sale have been satisfied.

A. Dates of the year requested for up to a total of five sidewalk sales
events per calendar year, of which no single sidewalk sale event may
exceed four consecutive days;

B. Proof of broad business community sponsorship for the event as
evidenced by signatures of five landlords of tenants engaged in retail
trade or merchants primarily engaged in retail trade;

C. Means and timeline of adequately informing the Kittery business
community of the opportunity to participate in a Town-wide sidewalk
sales event; and

D. Identification of a single contact person coordinating the event,
including that person's telephone number and mailing address.

A. The Town Council shall consider whether the application is complete
and whether the request is consistent with § 5.7.2, Intent and purpose,
in making its decision. The Town Council may decide to approve,
approve with modifications, approve with conditions, disapprove the
application or schedule a public hearing to gain public input on the
request prior to making a decision.

B. Modifications may include, but are not limited to, changing the dates or
duration of the sidewalk sales event. Conditions may include, but are
not limited to, hiring appropriate personnel to manage traffic or
prohibiting certain businesses that have violated the Town's regulations

§ 5.7.4 KITTERY CODE § 5.7.7

5.7:2



§ 5.7.8. Mall and individual business approval to participate in
sidewalk sales event.

§ 5.7.9. Sidewalk sales site plan submission requirements.

The site plan submitted for approval must include all of the following
information:

regarding sidewalk sales from participating in the event. The Town
Council's decision is to be communicated to the applicant's contact
person in writing.

A. Before any business engages in sidewalk sales, an approved site plan
must be on record with the Town. The sidewalk sales site plan is to be
reviewed by the Town staff in accordance with the standards and
procedures set forth in this chapter to protect the health, safety and
general welfare of the public.

B. To apply for sidewalk sales site plan approval, an applicant must
complete a sidewalk sales site plan in accordance with § 5.7.9 and
submit it to the Town Planner or, in the Planner's absence, the Code
Enforcement Officer.

A. Title of sidewalk sales site plan, including name and address of
applicant, the person responsible for preparing such drawing, and the
signature of the owner or authorized representative of the property;

B. Approximate North arrow, scale, Assessor's map and lot number in the
lower right-hand corner of the plan, and date that plan was prepared;

C. General layout of buildings, parking area, circulation lanes, and
location of curb cuts;

D. The exact location of temporary outdoor sales and display area,
including the location and size of tents or other temporary structures;

E. Location and width of unobstructed handicapped-accessible pedestrian
routes and sidewalks. The means used to identify and designate the
pedestrian routes so they do not become obstructed or lead pedestrians
into the routes of vehicles (for example, temporary fencing, cordoning,
traffic cones, pavement striping, etc.) must also be noted on the plan;

F. Location and width of vehicle circulation and any fire and emergency
lanes, showing access and egress. The means used to identify and
designate the vehicle lanes so they do not become obstructed by
shoppers or merchandise must also be noted on the plan;

Number of parking spaces temporarily obstructed by the sidewalk sales
event activities and number of total parking spaces available during the
sidewalk sales event;

G. Location of employee parking or overflow parking, if specially provided
for;

§ 5.7.7 SIDEWALK SALES § 5.7.9

5.7:3



§ 5.7.10. Review standards.

The site of the sidewalk sales must be designed to accommodate expected
patrons without danger to the public health or safety and to prevent
unacceptable traffic delays caused by traffic congestion. To this end, the
following standards must be satisfied:

§ 5.7.11. Town staff decision for approval of sidewalk sales site
plan.

H. Location of any temporary structures or places of public assembly for
musical, cultural, educational or community events; and

I. The name and telephone number of a contact person available during
the sidewalk sales event to remedy any day-of-the-sale problems or
correct violations of the submitted site plan.

A. Pedestrian and vehicular routes are to be clearly marked and identified
on the plan. If walkways and vehicular lanes are altered from the
current routes, the plan is to explain the means used to identify and
mark such revised routes on the site (for example, by using traffic
cones, temporary fencing, painted or chalked lines on pavement, and
roping off areas);

B. Unobstructed five-foot-wide handicapped-accessible pedestrian routes
must be provided;

C. Unobstructed nineteen-foot-wide two-way vehicular routes or thirteen-
foot-wide one-way vehicular routes must be provided;

D. Safe and logical traffic routes on the site as well as to and from the site
must be provided; and

E. Adequate parking must be provided so that parking does not obstruct
the safe flow of traffic or create hazards for pedestrians. Up to 10% of
the normally required number of parking spaces may be temporarily
obstructed by sidewalk sales event activities if suitable arrangements
are made to free up parking spaces normally used for employee parking
or if environmentally suitable temporary overflow parking areas are
provided.

A. Within five business days, or within 48 hours (exclusive of weekends
and holidays) if a sidewalk sales event is scheduled to occur sooner, of
receiving a complete application for sidewalk sales site plan approved
by the Town Planner or, in the Planner's absence, the Code
Enforcement Officer, Town Council shall render a decision. The decision
may be to approve, approve with modifications, approve with conditions
or disapprove a sidewalk sales site plan. The decision is to be based
strictly on the review criteria listed in § 5.7.10.

B. Failure to render a decision within the prescribed time limit constitutes
an approval for the next approved sidewalk sales event.

§ 5.7.9 KITTERY CODE § 5.7.11

5.7:4



§ 5.7.12. Permits required for signs, tents and other structures.

§ 5.7.13. Temporary closing of public street.

The requested closing of any public street requires approval by the Town
Council.

§ 5.7.14. Appeals procedure.

Any person aggrieved by any decision regarding the site plan review for
an approved sidewalk sales event may appeal the decision to the Town
Manager. Such appeal must be instituted within 30 days after the receipt of
a written decision to deny the sidewalk sales site plan.

§ 5.7.15. Enforcement.

It is the intent of this chapter that sidewalk sales activities will be self-
policed by merchants and landlords of retail merchants. In the event self-
policing is not successful, the Code Enforcement Officer or other person
duly authorized by the Town is to enforce the provisions of this chapter.
The Code Enforcement Officer is to order the correction or abatement of
all violations of this chapter. Uncorrected violations are to be reported to

C. Approved sidewalk sales site plans will be kept on file and are valid for
future Town Council-approved sidewalk sales events without
reapplication if the sidewalk sales activities on the site remains
consistent with the approved plan.

D. Applicants are to be informed in writing of a decision to disapprove a
sidewalk sales site plan.

E. Approved site plans are to be signed and dated by the reviewer along
with the notation: "approved site plan for sidewalk sales during an
approved sidewalk sales event" and kept on file.

A. No special permit is required for conducting sidewalk sales in
accordance with the Town-approved sidewalk sales site plan on a Town
Council-approved sidewalk sales event date.

B. All temporary signs and banners must be permitted by the Code
Enforcement Officer in accordance with Article X of Chapter 16.8. One
temporary sign or banner per participating site in addition to that
normally allowed may be permitted for each sidewalk sales event. Sign
applications, accompanied by application fees, for such additional
signage are to be made to the Code Enforcement Officer well in
advance of the actual sidewalk sales event.

C. All temporary structures, such as tents, that will be removed at the
conclusion of the sidewalk sales event and are shown on the Town-
approved sidewalk sales site plan do not require building/regulated
activity permits. Other temporary structures require building/regulated
activity permits.

§ 5.7.11 SIDEWALK SALES § 5.7.15

5.7:5



the Town Council upon the next application for approving a sidewalk sales
event.

§ 5.7.16. Violations.

Merchants conducting outdoor sales and display of merchandise that have
not been approved by the Planning Board or in compliance with this chapter
is a violation of the sidewalk sales ordinance codified in this chapter and
Title 16, Land Use and Development Code.

§ 5.7.17. Violations and penalties.

A. When any violation of any provision of this chapter is found to exist, the
Town Attorney or the CEO, as provided by M.R.C.P. Rule 80K, upon
notice from the Town Manager, is authorized and directed to institute
any and all appropriate actions and proceedings either legal or
equitable that may be appropriate or necessary for the enforcement of
the provisions of this chapter, the same to be brought in the name of the
Town.

B. Any person, firm or corporation (including tenants in retail malls) being
the owner of or having control or use of any building or premises, who
violates any of the provisions hereof, is guilty of a civil violation, and the
Town has those remedies including fines as are provided and allowed by
30-A M.R.S. § 4452. Each day such violation is permitted to exist after
notification constitutes a separate offense. All fines collected hereunder
accrue to the Town.3

3. Editor's Note: Original § 5.7.18, Conflict with other laws, was repealed at time of adoption
of Code (see Ch. 1.1, Code Adoption).

§ 5.7.15 KITTERY CODE § 5.7.17

5.7:6



 

 

 

 

                                                       Items on Hold 
      
      

• Workshop - Joint Land Use Study Implementation 

• Workshop - VP SAMP Presentation 

• Workshop – Title – 6 Animal Control 

• Public Hearing - Title 5 Short Term Rentals 

• Schedule Public Hearing – Title 10 Walker/Wentworth 
 


	2020.05.27 96 Pepperrell Road App.pdf
	KPA 96 Pepperrell rd.pdf
	MultiPDF0283-01.pdf

	2020.05.27 96 Pepperrell Road App.pdf
	KPA 96 Pepperrell rd.pdf
	MultiPDF0283-01.pdf




